Notice of Children's Services Overview and Scrutiny
Committee
Date:

Wednesday, 24 February 2021 at 6.00 pm

Venue:

Virtual Meeting

Membership:
Chairman:
Cllr R Burton
Vice Chairman:
Cllr L Lewis
Cllr E Coope
Cllr B Dunlop
Cllr N C Geary
Cllr J Kelly

Cllr S Moore
Cllr L Northover
Cllr S Phillips
Cllr Dr F Rice

Cllr R Rocca
Mr S Welch
Mr M Saxby
Ms E Hall

Parent Governor Co-opted Representatives
Emma Hall, Peter Martin and Simon Welch
Diocesan Co-Opted Representatives
Mark Saxby
Youth Parliament Representatives
Nathan Collins, Sarah Lockard, Adaya Brandon and Georgia Grogan
All Members of the Children's Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee are summoned to attend
this meeting to consider the items of business set out on the agenda below.
The press and public are welcome to view the live stream of this meeting at the following link:
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?MId=4636
If you would like any further information on the items to be considered at the meeting please contact:
Louise Smith, Democratic Services, louise.smith@bcpcouncil.gov.uk or
email democratic.services@bcpcouncil.gov.uk
Press enquiries should be directed to the Press Office by email at press.office@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

GRAHAM FARRANT
CHIEF EXECUTIVE
16 February 2021

BCP Council Offices, Town Hall, Bourne Avenue, Bournemouth BH2 6DY

Available online and
on the Mod.gov app

This notice and all the papers mentioned within it are available at democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk

anne.brown@bcpcouncil.gov.uk

AGENDA
Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public
1.

Apologies

F_PRO

To receive any apologies for absence from Councillors.
2.

Substitute Members

F_PRO

To receive information on any changes in the membership of the
Committee.
Note – When a member of a Committee is unable to attend a meeting of a
Committee or Sub-Committee, the relevant Political Group Leader (or their
nominated representative) may, by notice to the Monitoring Officer (or their
nominated representative) prior to the meeting, appoint a substitute
member from within the same Political Group. The contact details on the
front of this agenda should be used for notifications.
3.

Declarations of Interests

F_PRO

Councillors are requested to declare any interests on items included in this
agenda. Please refer to the workflow on the preceding page for guidance.
Declarations received will be reported at the meeting.
4.

Confirmation of Minutes

F_PRO

To confirm and sign as a correct record the minutes of the Meeting held on
26 January 2021.
a)

Action Sheet

F_PRO

5.

Public Issues

F_PRO

To receive any public questions, statements or petitions submitted in
accordance with the Constitution, which is available to view at the following
link:
https://democracy.bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeID=151&Inf
o=1&bcr=1
The deadline for the submission of a public question is 4 clear working days
before the meeting.
The deadline for the submission of a public statement is midday the
working day before the meeting.
The deadline for the submission of a petition is 10 working days before the
meeting.

6.

Children and Young People's Partnership Plan 2021 - 2024
The draft BCP Children and Young People’s Plan has been developed
by the BCP Children and Young People’s Partnership Board, the
successor body to the previous Learning Partnership Board. The

F_PRO

difference is to focus on all issues for children, not just education and to
a lesser extent, children’s social care.
Having a plan in place is a requirement placed on BCP by the Local
Government Reorganisation process so in that sense it is a plan required
by Government of us.
The draft Plan sets out the proposed strategic priorities for partnership
action to improve outcomes for BCP’s children and young people and to
help them achieve their potential. It is consistent with existing BCP
policy about improving child outcomes
Central to this is that the Council plays its part in the Partnership to help
BCP’s children and young people to be “fulfilled, happy, included, and
resilient”.
This report provides a copy of the draft plan at Appendix 1 to the report.
The draft Plan has been subject to public consultation during the month
of January 2021.
This Plan, when finalised, will be championed by the multi-agency BCP
Children and Young People’s Partnership Board. An action plan will be an
integral part of the final document. This will be monitored through the
Board.
7.

Covid - Children's Services

F_PRO

To receive a verbal update from the Portfolio Holder with responsibility for
Covid and the Interim Corporate Director, Children’s Services with a
Committee report being brought to the next Committee.
8.

Items for Information
-

9.

F_PRO

BCP Children's Services Complaints and Representations Annual
Report 2019-2020

Forward Plan

F_PRO

To consider the Committee’s Forward Plan.
10.

Dates of Future Meetings
To note the dates of future Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny
Committees as follows:
 23 March 2021
 8 June 2021
 27 July 2021
 21 September 2021
 23 November 2021
 25 January 2022
 22 March 2022
All meetings will commence at 6pm and venues to be confirmed.

F_PRO

No other items of business can be considered unless the Chairman decides the matter is urgent for reasons that
must be specified and recorded in the Minutes.

This page is intentionally left blank

–1–

Agenda Item 4

BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE COUNCIL
CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Minutes of the Meeting held on 26 January 2021 at 6.00 pm
Present:Cllr R Burton – Chairman
Cllr L Lewis – Vice-Chairman
Present:

Cllr E Coope, Cllr B Dunlop, Cllr N C Geary, Cllr J Kelly, Cllr S Moore,
Cllr L Northover, Cllr S Phillips, Cllr R Rocca, Mr S Welch,
Mr M Saxby and Ms E Hall

Co-Opted
Members:

Mr N Collins, Ms S Lockard, Ms A Brandon, Ms G Grogan, Mr P
Martin, Mr S Welch, Mr M Saxby and Ms E Hall.

Also in
attendance:

Elaine Redding – Corporate Director for Children’s Services
Rebecca McDade – Children and Young People Development
Worker – Participation
Neil Goddard – Director of Quality and Commissioning
Anthony Douglas – Department for Education Representative
Joseph Tyler - Democratic and Overview and Scrutiny Officer / Cler
Cllr N Greene – Portfolio Holder for Covid Resilience, Public Health
and Education
Cllr M White – Portfolio Holder for Childrens.

120.

Apologies
There were no apologies for this meeting.

121.

Substitute Members
There were no substitute members for this meeting.

122.

Declarations of Interests
There were no declarations of interest for this meeting.

123.

Confirmation of Minutes
RESOLVED that the Minutes of the Children’s Services Overview and
Scrutiny Committee held on 1 December 2020, having been
previously circulated, be signed by the Chairman and confirmed as a
correct record.

124.

Action Sheet
The Chair referred to two actions that were outstanding: the report on
children carrying knives and the Local Government Peer Review. Both were
yet to be circulated to members and would require actioning. Action
7

–2–

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
26 January 2021
The action sheet was noted.
125.

Public Issues
There were no public issues for this meeting.

126.

Covid- 19 Impact and recovery - Mental Health and impact of returning to
school
The Director of Quality and Commissioning for BCP Council presented a
report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of
which appears as Appendix 'A' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. The
report related to the first national lockdown, during the Spring and Summer
months of 2020.
The report detailed the work that the Council had undertaken to support
professionals and families with the September 2020 return to school, after
the first national lockdown. The Director of Quality and Commissioning
gave an overview of this work and provided further information on the
Staying Connected surveys and the materials that were produced to
support the return to school. The key points of the presentation were:
•
•
•
•
•
•

The Local Authority had produced materials for parents and
educational professionals detailing the support that would be
provided in the return to schools in September 2020.
Two surveys were undertaken relating to children with SEND.
Feedback from the surveys highlighted anxiety, isolation and lack of
structure as the main impact on wellbeing.
Work was undertaken between the Local Authority and local schools
to best meet the needs of children not attending school to continue
with the education offer delivered at home.
The remote learning offer had developed over the course of the
lockdown; however, the Local Authority must be aware of the impact
of lockdown on children and the effects of not being in school.
It was hoped that children would be able to transition back to school
successfully and pick back up on the experiences and socialisation
they had missed.

Members of the Youth Parliament that were present provided some further
information to the Committee. The Committee heard that the Youth
Parliament had:
• Conducted research into children’s responses to lockdown. These
included the use of questionnaires and social media polls.
• Overall, the prominent feelings of children were that of anxiety,
stress and uncertainty.
• Many changes had taken place since the initial return to schools in
September 2020 and with the situation changing rapidly, more needs
to be done to assess the feelings of children affected.
• More than half the children surveyed said that they felt the remote
education was unsatisfactory and that the loss of the classroom
environment was the biggest negative impact.
8

–3–

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
26 January 2021
•

Extra-curricular classes and activities were a big part of children’s
lives prior to the pandemic and these opportunities had stopped for
almost a year.

The Committee discussed the Report. Comments, questions and answers
heard included:
•

•

•
•

•

How was wellbeing of children being monitored and was best
practice advice being shared? The Committee heard that monitoring
of the educational offer was a prime part of the monitoring process.
This offer had developed over time alongside the monitoring of
schools and quality assurance. For mental health, vulnerable
children are tracked individually, and work is done with schools to
ensure these children receive the necessary support. This is a large
number of children and it therefore required a partnership between
the school and Children’s Services to identify all of the children in
need of help. The rapid nature of changes to education and school
closures made it difficult to assess and analyse the effects of
lockdown on children, as was seen with the one day before
nationwide school closures in January 2021.
What consideration was given to children with protected
characteristics and their support needs? The Committee were
informed that there is always consideration given to children with
protected characteristics and assistance has been requested for the
health service for reassurance on the challenges faced by those of a
protected group when it came to COVID-19. It was acknowledged by
the Committee that throughout the pandemic, members of protected
groups had faced increased challenges due to the pandemic and
that this was no less the case when it came to supporting children
who were out of school and in lockdown.
When it came to mental health support it was acknowledged that any
child could face difficulties and that support must be provided for all
who require it.
The informative materials supplied to parents and education
professionals detailing support that was in place for children was
deemed useful and officers were confident it was made available for
the target audience. A request was made by a member of the Youth
Parliament for a similar resource to be made for children. The
Committee heard that this was a helpful suggestion and could be
explored.
What proportion of parents and relevant carers responded to the
Staying Connected surveys? The Director of Quality and
Commissioning explained that the number of children with an
Education, Health and Care Plan (EHCP) across the conurbation
was 4000 and that 78 parent/carers had responded. The limited time
frame meant that information had to be gathered swiftly and
immediately used to for overview of the situation. The Local Authority
publicised the survey through the parent-carer forum and made
available through schools. It was heard that this matter was a useful
exercise in getting a feel for parent experience and that it should be
revisited now that term was underway. The survey gave a short
9

–4–

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
26 January 2021

•

•

sharp insight into the community and the information was
triangulated with feedback from schools and partners.
Had sufficient technology and equipment been supplied to those
families that needed it? The Committee were told that before
Christmas, during the Autumn term, the Government scheme to
provide laptops to vulnerable children had seen the Local Authority
acquire and distribute 1200 laptops alongside the work of the Virtual
School put in place to assist children. It was explained that, with the
move to a comprehensive remote offer, the Government scheme
sought to support children where there was an outbreak or a high
need for such equipment. A member of the Youth Parliament
informed the Committee that they were aware of potential issues
with broadband and the impact that this would have on learners. The
Committee were told that it was vitally important that schools provide
access to lessons and learning resources at both the point of
delivery and afterwards. This was in case there were any issues with
a learner’s internet access where they needed to revisit the lesson or
learning materials at a later time. Members heard that during the first
lockdown, the Government had run a scheme to issue 4G dongles to
learners to help provide internet access through mobile phone
network. After Christmas, the Government have sought to provide
discounted access to a 4G or 3G network via mobile phones.
What support was being given to teachers regarding their wellbeing?
The Director of Quality and Commissioning explained that teachers
were having to provide in-classroom teaching as well as remote
learning for those pupils learning from home. The Portfolio Holder for
COVID Resilience, Public Health and Education added that lot of
new skills and expectations were being placed on teachers and their
mental health must be recognised and supported going forward.
Teachers also suffered from the lack of interaction and classroom
experience. The Portfolio Holder agreed that involvement from the
Youth Parliament would be beneficial and that there would be a
£1million investment in the Council’s budget toward support young
people, their wellbeing and their transition back to school. Some
Winter grant fund money from Government would be targeted at
helping holiday activities and support clubs. The Portfolio Holder
gave a commitment on supporting Young People on these issues
and during this time

The Chairman provided a summary of the discussion that had taken place
and emphasised the key points were as follows:
•
Online Learning and consistency of provision.
•
Sharing of best practice.
•
Learners with protected characteristics.
•
Response levels to survey.
•
Young people’s interest in being surveyed.
•
Technical equipment for remote learners
•
Funding available for remote learners.
Resolved that the Committee
10

–5–

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
26 January 2021
(a) note the materials that were produced to support professionals
and families with the transition of local authority pupils back into
school following lockdown and
(b) note the outcomes of the surveys that were undertaken in relation
to this work.
127.

Recent Ofsted visit outcome
The Interim Corporate Director for Children’s Services at BCP Council
presented a report, a copy of which had been circulated to each Member
and a copy of which appears as Appendix 'B' to these Minutes in the Minute
Book. The report related to the visit to Children’s Services made by Ofsted
in October 2020, the serious concerns in the quality of services and the
subsequent 15-point action plan - is the response to those concerns.the
first national lockdown, during the Spring and Summer months of 2020. The
Interim Corporate Director for Children’s Services gave an overview of this
work and provided further information on the Action Plan and the position
after four months post-Ofsted inspection. The key points of the presentation
were:
• 4 Months on from the October 2020 Ofsted inspection the service
area are continuing to make improvements. The entire academic
year had been disrupted due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
however the ambition of service area remains high and the
throughout whole department relentless in their focus on the
areas that were deemed in need of improvement, such as
Corporate Parenting and Young People. The Committee heard
that as system leaders there is an imperative to provide whatever
is needed by young people.
• Some of the service area’s staff were prioritised for the vaccine and
there had been an increase in positive tests as the testing rates
increased. The Action Plan does consider potential reductions in
workforce due to COVID-19.
• The most significant change in the 4-month period was on service
area clarity and how the service orders their work. There were
now processes in place that were clear and linear, so that staff
and families could understand what work was being done, why
and where, which was considered the bedrock of good practice
by a Local Authority.
• Keeping spirits and energy levels high within the service area was
key to maintaining good leadership and workforce activity.
The Department for Education representative gave further detail around the
4-month progress of the Action Plan which included:
•
•

That the service has made a good start and there is strong political
commitment to the plan, including cross party support.
The plan contains 7 ‘obsessions’ and 15 action points, which is the
irreducible minimum so that all areas are delivered
simultaneously.
11

–6–

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
26 January 2021
•

•
•
•

Progress had taken place within the Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub
(MASH) which was heavily criticised by Ofsted last year. The
services have been changed enough so that the right children
were getting to the right service quicker. The family court
application process, to remove children from parents where
necessary, had also improved. These applications were much
better handled, scrutinised and performance managed.
Therefore, the service can improve as shown by such examples.
Improvements and changes should not happen too rapidly as there
is a risk that staff could be alienated, and morale could decrease.
COVID-19 and lockdown had limited the progress that could have
taken place, however it was important that the service continued
to make steady progress/.
An improvement in the quality of front-line practice is what Ofsted
are looking for next. Improving processes to have less delay and
more focus will help, this is no guarantee though.

The Committee discussed the Report. Comments, questions and answers
heard included:
•

A Committee member asked how the Council could be better
corporate parents. The Interim Corporate Director for Children’s
Services welcomed suggestions and personal input from Councillors
on this matter and encouraged that any members able to should
offer to help the Corporate Parenting service ‘love and care for a
child that is not yours”, be this through employment opportunities or
other support measures. The Committee agreed to arrange a
communication to go out to all Councillors on this matter. Action

•

A question was posed on staff morale and staff turnover within the
service. The Interim Corporate Director for Children’s Services
clarified that pressures were not limited to the workloads. Good
social workers will stay if they feel supported, as work is emotionally
draining. Recruitment and retention payment has been well received
and made the Council’s employment offer competitive. There were a
combination of factors and creating an environment for social work
to flourish is certainly one of them. The Committee heard that the
service must invest in their staff and give opportunities to staff to
assist in shaping the service they deliver. Across the service, which
employs 1100 staff, there were some very happy and well
performing teams and some in crises. It was found that many staff
members loved the job but didn’t love the organisation which was
down to past failures. The most important factor now is to get
leadership and management correct in order to restore confidence
over time. Members were told that the service must deal with any
and all issues as they occur and as improvements take place, rather
than ignoring them until later in time. A forum had been set up to
gauge views of children and staff to track experience and see if
these areas were getting better. What was found initially is that there
was a high sickness level and subsequently a high utilisation of
agency staff. A Committee member endorsed this view and stated
12

–7–

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
26 January 2021

•

•

•

•

•

that culture is as important as strategy and that there must be a
change in culture and ensure children are at heart of everything.
One member asked a question on transparency and the MOSAIC
system that the service used. It was explained that the system had
caused issues. The system, if implemented properly and not
corrupted by work arounds, is a system that good and outstanding
Local Authorities use. The lack of clarity had manifested itself in the
work-flow section of the system. Due to this, the service were
migrating the care director cases onto mosaic and actioning at level
of appropriate pace and some problem points within the system
would be removed.
The Committee heard about the partnership academy and that
meetings with staff and groups such as the parent carer forum were
underway. It is important to include people in policy development
and the academy was envisaged as a multi agency to ensure that
frontline staff are trained and supported to the highest levels of
practice. The Committee were informed by the representative from
the Department for Learning that the work ongoing for the
partnership academy would match the ambition of the Council in
order to create a place of learning and development, for everybody.
The Interim Corporate Director for Children’s Services explained the
role of the Independent Reviewing Officer. The officer provides high
support and challenge to social workers and managers on the
progression of plans for young people. The officer should be aware
of the young people with specific needs and the areas that the
service may have weaknesses in the consistency of knowing or
assessing the needs of young people. This sits outside of the 15
point action-plan. Work was ongoing between the Head of Quality
Assurance and the Independent Reviewing Officer to understand in
detail how to engage with young people and affect change with pace
and purpose. A sense of urgency was needed in that area of service
and the example given was the court work.
A Member asked a question on the various levels of corporate input
into the service. It was heard that the whole Local Authority should
be considered a ‘family business’ in which employment and
apprenticeship opportunities could be provided. Issues in Children’s
Services were the remit of the entire Local Authority. The
responsibility to improve the service stretches from the Leader of the
Council to every member of staff. There is a high level of support
from the corporate management and the focal point was the
development of a care leavers’. This would enable young people and
care leavers a place to drop into and call their own. Much of this
work derived from the Regeneration & Economy Directorate. Work
would also include the SEND cohort, to enable the Council to look
after more people. The Chief Executive has the remit and
responsibility for this and had been working with firms across and
outside the Council to support vulnerable and looked after children
The Committee heard that there was an aim to improve the quality of
educational and healthcare plan assessments and that there had
been a thorough quality assurance framework that regularly looks at
assessments. There are around eight assessments a month and
13

–8–

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
26 January 2021
now simple processes have been put in to help proofread and edit
drafts before they are sent to parents. Some slight improvement was
seen in the last month but would be an ongoing piece of work that
required the focus from partners. A report would go to the
Improvement Board containing more information on the EHCP
assessments. This report would be made available to the Committee
to better show the mature auditing framework no in place. Action
• It was heard that the Council utilised Ofsted grades to measure the
success of the service. The current, most important measure was to
reduce the inadequate work and increase good or outstanding work.
There had been an upward movement in the last few months which
was an initial indication of a move toward the next grade.
• On permanent school exclusions, the Committee heard that there
were regular meetings with headteachers held and that there is a
school inclusion team. It was explained that more needed to be done
and that the aim should be for there to be zero permanent school
expulsions.
• On the steps to reduce inequalities, Members were informed that the
action-plan be consolidated with the Children and Young People
plan, most likely in 2021-2023. It was a statutory requirement that
the Council produce the plan by April. It is a two-year program to
bridge gaps faced by disproportionately affected groups. The £1m
recovery programme can’t be spent on schools but can be
channelled on reduction of opportunities gap faced by children. This
investment was currently out for consultation now, looking to
populate the detail after, but will be to try reducing inequalities over a
two-year period.
The Chair summarised the main points of the discussion, which were as
followed:

The report was a 4-month progress insight into the 2-year
improvement timeframe.

Corporate Parenting and how Councillors can engage with it.

Staff morale – using staff surveys and assessing workloads with a
view to making improvements.

MOSAIC workflows.

The Academy; multi agency partnership.

Independent scrutiny and it’s role and remit.

Apprenticeships – their importance and viewing the Council as a
family business.

Exclusions rates and targets.

The casework grading system based on Ofsted’s model.

Inequalities to improve over the 2-year period.
Resolved that the Committee note the content of the report and
consider how it wishes to scrutinise delivery of the Action Plan over
the next few months.

128.

Establishment of Winchelsea Satellite at Somerford

14

–9–

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
26 January 2021
The Director of Quality and Commissioning presented a report, a copy of
which had been circulated to each Member and a copy of which appears as
Appendix 'C' to these Minutes in the Minute Book. The report related to the
proposed increase in local capacity at BCP maintained schools to meet the
assessed educational needs of children and young people with SEND and
to reduce pressure on the High Needs Budget.
The Director of Quality and Commissioning explained that there was
pressure on the High Needs Budget and that many schools were full or
oversubscribed, despite the Council having created additional units. The
next proposal was for Winchelsea Satellite at Somerford Primary It is
proposed that the number of places provided by Winchelsea School will
increase during the academic year 2021/22. The school will increase
through the addition of a satellite provision. This provision will add up to 60
Key Stage 1/2 at Somerford Primary School. These places will be able to
meet the needs of children placed at Winchelsea School.
There had been a good level of responses to the public consultation on the
matter. The Council understood the concerns raised and were now in a
position to submit the proposal to go through due process. The Committee
heard that the Council were confident they would come through with a good
offer.
The Chair summarised that the Committee were reassured by the update
and their concerns had been addressed.
RESOLVED that the Committee agree to the proposal to establish a
new satellite of Winchelsea School at the Somerford Primary School
site without objection.
129.

Items for Information

130.

Forward Plan
A Committee Member referred to the Health and Adult Social Care O&S
Committee and suggested that two of the items featured at their meetings,
which worked effectively, be added to the Children’s Services O&S
Committee Forward Plan as standing items. The items were:
1)
A Portfolio Holder update (To receive any updates from the relevant
Portfolio Holders on key issues or actions that have been taken since the
last meeting, as appropriate). Action
2)
COVID-19 update (For the Committee to receive an update on
COVID-19, to enable the Committee to monitor the ongoing pandemic and
scrutinise the ongoing response). Action
The Chairman acknowledged the suggestion and explained that this would
be explored with the relevant officers.

131.

Dates of Future Meetings
Resolved that the Committee note the dates of their future meetings.

15

– 10 –

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
26 January 2021
The meeting ended at 8.15 pm
CHAIRMAN

16

ACTION SHEET – BOURNEMOUTH, CHRISTCHURCH AND POOLE CHILDREN’S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
Minute
number

Item

Action*
*Items remain until action completed.

Benefit

Outcome (where
recommendations
are made to other
bodies)

To enable Councillors
to have more in-depth
information.

N/A

Actions arising from Committee meeting: 10 March 2020
BCP Children’s
Services SelfAssessment
January 2020

8

Decision Made:
That the following information/data be included in future
reports: Key Stage 5 attainment levels and a comparative
local authority’s data and an acronym sheet.
A request was again made that an acronym sheet be
included in any future reports.

17

Actioned – Service Directors advised

Actions arising from Committee meeting: 28 July 2020

90.

Decision Made:

To enable Councillors
to have more in-depth
Permanence Planning training on the processes used to understanding of the
be arranged for Committee Members
processes used.
Action – Service Director to arrange with Dem
Services

Actions arising from Committee meeting: 22 September 2020
105.
91.

Child Exploitation

Decision Made:

Agenda Item 4a

The BCP Children
in Care and Care
Experienced
Young People
Improvement
Journey

Minute
number

Item

Action*
*Items remain until action completed.

Benefit

Data, trends and comparisons, including information on To ensure that Cllrs
County Lines to be provided to the Committee.
are aware of the
nature and extent of
Actioned – Officers aware, work is ongoing and will be issues in the area of
shared with Committee when available
Child Exploitation
Decision Made:

To ensure that Cllrs
are sighted on the
Further information, data and progress relating to knife impact of measures
crime to be provided to the Committee.
that have been
introduced to respond
Actioned – Officers aware, work is ongoing and will be to these challenges
shared with Committee when available

18

Decision Made:
The profile being used to monitor progress to include a
dashboard of trends to be provided to the Committee.
Actioned – Officers aware and the dashboard is being
worked on and will be shared with the Committee
soon
Actions arising from Committee meeting: 1 December 2020
112.
92.

Action Sheet

Decision Made:

To enable Councillors
to have more in-depth
Information be shared with Committee Members regarding understanding of this
children carrying knives.
issue.
Action

Outcome (where
recommendations
are made to other
bodies)

Minute
number

Item

Action*
*Items remain until action completed.

Benefit

Decision Made:

To enable Councillors
to have more in-depth
The Ofsted focused Improvement Plan be shared with information and assist
Committee Members.
them in monitoring
progress
Action – Emailed to Committee on 16 Feb 2021
114
93.

Item requested by
a member of
public for
scrutiny

Decision Made:
To enable Councillors
Share the Local Government Peer Review with Committee to have more in-depth
Members.
information.
Action – Officers aware

19

Decision Made:
Chairman discuss with Officers to focus on an area for To enable Councillors
Scrutiny and email to Committee Members.
to decide on an area
to focus scrutiny
Action – Chairman and Officers aware
115
94.

First time
Entrants to Youth
Justice

Decision Made:
To enable Councillors
Number of 10-17 year olds within the Youth Justice to have more in-depth
System be shared with Committee Members
information.
Actioned – Email sent to Committee 16 Feb 2021
Decision Made:
Information regarding LAC or previously LAC in the Youth

Outcome (where
recommendations
are made to other
bodies)

Minute
number

Item

Action*
*Items remain until action completed.

Benefit

Justice System be shared with Committee Members
Actioned – Email sent to Committee 16 Feb 2021
Decision Made:
Consideration be given to tracking and recording poverty
and deprivation levels of service users
Actioned – Email sent to Committee 16 Feb 2021
Children’s
Services
response to
Covid-19

118
96.

Forward Plan

20

117
95.

Decision Made:

To enable Councillors
to have more in-depth
Focus on inequalities and reducing LAC not on roll or information.
education in February report on NEETs
Action – Officers aware
Decision Made:

To enable Councillors
to have more in-depth
Briefing to be arranged between Cllr Rice and the information.
Corporate Director regarding the Childcare Sufficiency
Review
Action – to be arranged
Decision Made:
An update on Child Exploitation, County Lines and
numbers of Children in Care be provided to Committee
Members

Outcome (where
recommendations
are made to other
bodies)

Minute
number

Item

Action*
*Items remain until action completed.

Benefit

Actioned – to be circulated to Committee Members

26 January 2021
4a97.
Action Sheet

Decision Made:
The Chair requested the outstanding actions - Report on
children carrying knives and Local Government Peer
Review be completed.

To enable Councillors
to have more in-depth
information.

Action – Officers aware.

21

7 98.

Recent Ofsted
Visit Outcome

Decision Made:

To enable Councillors
to have more in-depth
EHCP assessments report that was going to the information.
Improvement Board be shared with the Committee.
Actioned – Circulated to Committee on 16 Feb 2021.
Decision Made:
An email be sent to all Councillors asking them to consider To ensure all
supporting Corporate Parenting where they could, i.e. Councillors are aware
potential employment offers for care leavers
of and consider their
roles as Corporate
Actioned – Email sent by Chair on 15 Feb 2021.
Parents

Outcome (where
recommendations
are made to other
bodies)

1099.

Forward Plan

Decision Made:

To enable the
Committee to be kept
PFH Update and COVID19 update be added to the up to date on any
Forward Plan as standing items.
issues.
Actioned – Clerk added to the Forward Plan

22

Agenda Item 6

CHILDREN'S SERVICES OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Report subject

Children and Young People’s Partnership Plan 2021 - 2024

Meeting date

24 February 2021

Status

Public Report

Executive summary

The draft BCP Children and Young People’s Plan has
been developed by the BCP Children and Young People’s
Partnership Board, the successor body to the previous
Learning Partnership Board. The difference is to focus on
all issues for children, not just education and to a lesser
extent, children’s social care.
Having a plan in place is a requirement placed on BCP by the
Local Government Reorganisation process so in that sense it
is a plan required by Government of us.
The draft Plan sets out the proposed strategic priorities for
partnership action to improve outcomes for BCP’s children
and young people and to help them achieve their
potential. It is consistent with existing BCP policy about
improving child outcomes
Central to this is that the Council plays its part in the
Partnership to help BCP’s children and young people to
be “fulfilled, happy, included, and resilient”.
This report provides a copy of the draft plan at Appendix 1
to the report.
The draft Plan has been subject to public consultation
during the month of January 2021.
This Plan, when finalised, will be championed by the multiagency BCP Children and Young People’s Partnership
Board. An action plan will be an integral part of the final
document. This will be monitored through the Board.

23

Recommendations

1) It is RECOMMENDED that members of Overview
and Scrutiny take this opportunity to contribute
and provide feedback on the proposed priorities to
enable the development of the final plan before it is
recommended by Cabinet for adoption by the Full
Council.
2) That the Committee decides how it wishes to
scrutinise delivery of the Children and Young
People’s Plan over the course of its life.

Reason for
recommendations

To achieve maximum constructive engagement and plan
for ongoing scrutiny given the significance of the Plan for
children and young people in Bournemouth,
Christchurch and Poole.

Portfolio Holder(s):

Cllr Mike White, Portfolio Holder for Children and Young
People

Corporate Director

Elaine Redding – Corporate Director – Children’s Services

Contributors

Anthony Douglas CBE - Independent Chair of the Children
and Young People’s Partnership Board
Neil Goddard – Service Director – Quality and Commissioning

Wards

Council Wide

Classification

For Recommendation/ Update and Information

Title:
Background
1. The BCP Children and Young People’s Partnership Board has been
developing a new 3-year strategic plan to improve long term outcomes for
children and young people. The BCP Children and Young People’s
Partnership Board evolved from the BCP Learning Partnership Board and is a
multi-agency partnership which includes partners from police, health, schools,
early years settings and the voluntary and community sectors. In 2020 BCP
Children and Young People’s Partnership Board affirmed their shared
commitment to working together for children and young people in the BCP are
and created their Governance and Terms of Reference document setting out
the role and aims of the partnership.
2. Children’s Services reported to Children’s Overview and Scrutiny
Committee in October 2020 about the evolution of the BCP Learning

24

Partnership Board (LPB), into the new BCP Children and Young People’s
Partnership Board (C&YPPB).
3. The newly formed BCP C&YPPB retains a strong focus on learning and
education as it evolves from the LPB and aims to maximise the life
chances through education of all children and young people in the BCP
area. Education has remained the central issue for the Board because of
the numerous issues facing schools and colleges in the pandemic.
4. The BCP C&YPPB membership has expressed a strong commitment to
taking active steps together to make further improvements to the lives of all
children and young people in the BCP area over a period of years. All board
members are committed to taking personal and organisational commitment
and responsibility to make this happen believing that working together well
changes lives for the better.
5. Anthony Douglas CBE is the interim Chair of the Board. He is also the interim
chair of the Pan-Dorset Safeguarding Children Partnership.
6. The draft Plan went out for consultation in January 2021. It is anticipated
that the final version will be signed off by Cabinet in March 2021.
The Children and Young People’s Plan
7. This plan began development at the end of the first wave of COVID 19 and we
knew that the recovery period would be challenging to get right, with so much
to do and so many justifiable concerns about the level of care and support
some local children and young people will need from us.
8. Since then the country returned to a national lockdown for a second time in
2020, and the country is again locked down for the third time as we go into
2021. This has meant it has been harder to focus on the medium-term and
long-term as most effort has had to go into managing the present situation
safely for children, young people and their families
Capturing the Voice of Children and Young People
9. Each partner organisation has their own mechanisms to enable participation
and to gather views and feedback, finding out what children and young people
are worried about. These views inform the work that they do and what they
bring to the Partnership, ensuring that children’s and young people’s views
are sought, and that these views inform our plan.
10. To help develop our plan we asked the children and young people of
Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole to share with us what makes for a
happy life and what makes them happy. This survey took place throughout the
month of November 2020 – the month we went into the 2nd national lockdown
due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Children and young people shared their

25

thoughts about happiness, and we created our BCP happiness cloud (see the
document cover of the C and YPP).
11. Teachers shared their experiences of the conversations they had with their
students about happiness. Knowing what happiness looks like for children and
young people in BCP enables us to create an environment where happiness
is not only possible but can flourish. In talking about what makes for a happy
life children and young people also touched on what has made them sad as
they reflected on the recent restrictions that have been imposed on the
country. Understanding this sadness also helps us to plan though it is wrong
to generalise from either misery or happiness. Good to outstanding services
respond well to all situations facing children and young people.
BCP C&YP Plan priorities and ambitions
12. Listening to what children and young people told us has helped us set our 4
priorities:
a) Fulfilled - Children and young people have the opportunities and are
supported to achieve their full potential in education, learning and
future employment.
b) Happy - Children and young people can enjoy healthy lifestyles and
make positive choices.
c) Included - Children and young people are accepted as valued
members of society enabling them to achieve within, and contribute to,
the wider community.
d) Resilient - Children and young people are supported to be resilient in
the face of the challenges presented by the COVID 19 pandemic.
13. To achieve these ambitions, it is envisaged that the Partnership will have 2 or
3 active programmes at any single point in time working on both short - term
priorities, and other continuous programmes addressing the longerterm priorities.
14. The plan will be updated as targets are achieved, and their desired impact
confirmed as well as when each next set of priorities is identified and agreed.
Consultation
15. A press release was issued on 11 January 2021 to accompany the Plan. This
was also sent to partner organisations for distribution within their own
organisations.
16. All members of the Children and Young People’s Partnership Board had the
opportunity to contribute to the development of the plan, and to comment on it

26

prior to the launch of the consultation period which ran from Monday 11
January 2021 until 31 January 2021.
17. More than 20 people commented on the plan by email or online form, sharing
their views. All comments were positive and helpful. Views were also shared
through meetings and forums.
18. All comments and suggestions received during the consultation period were
considered and either reflected in the final version of the plan or taken forward
to the board.
Summary of financial implications
19. The Children and Young People’s Plan will guide and enable joint allocation of
resources across the partnership to ensure we meet our objectives and
develop effective and efficient ways of working.
20. Where there is opportunity to jointly bid for additional funding this will be
taken.
21. The day to day working of the Board will be delivered through existing
resources across the partnership so no additional expenditure is identified.
Understandably, over the course of 3 years, some new priorities that will be
identified will need some funding. It is recommended these are dealt with on
an issue by issue basis at the time
22. There are already additional funds committed to implementation of the
Children’s Services and SEND action plans, these are being progressed by
Children’s Services, not the Partnership Board.
Summary of legal implications
23. The statutory requirement for a Children and Young People's Plan was
revoked in 2010 and statutory guidance requiring Local Authorities to have a
Children and Young People’s Plan was removed by the Government in 2011.
24. Whilst, there is no longer a requirement for Local Authorities to have such a
document, they may choose to do so where it makes sense locally in order to
identify and formalise commitments.
25. As part of the LGR framework, BCP is required to have a jointly agreed plan
by April 2021. The final plan will be presented for sign off to Cabinet in April
2021.
Summary of public health implications
26. The Children and Young People’s Plan strengthens the partnership
commitment to ensuring every child in BCP has the “best start in life” and
development into adulthood, as outlined within the Public Health Prevention at
Scale ambitions.

27

27. Public Health are represented on the Board and are actively involved in the
development of the Plan.
Summary of equality implications
28. In achieving the ambitions of the Board as set out in the Plan resources will
be targeted at the disadvantaged.
Summary of risk assessment
29. A risk register will be produced after the first 6 months of the Partnership,
when more detailed planning and delivery is under way.
Background papers
None
Appendices
The draft BCP Children’s and Young People’s Plan 2021 – 2024

28

Children and Young
People’s Plan
2021 – 2024

Bournemouth, Christchurch
and Poole

29

Contents

Foreword

3

Introduction to children and young people in the BCP area:
The place		
Children and young people

5
9

If the BCP area had 100 children
		
Views of children and young people

16

Multi-agency contributions

22

BCP Council’s Children and Young People’s Partnership
Priorities
The Plan

23
26

Thanks and acknowledgements

34

30

18

2

Foreword
by Anthony Douglas CBE

Chair of the BCP Children and Young People’s
Partnership Board
Our three-year plan is ambitious.

It provides the time to turn services around and to develop the new services required
if we are to sufficiently improve.
The central aspiration of our BCP Children and Young People’s Partnership Board
is to make a difference to the lives of children and young people living in, learning in
or visiting the BCP area. This means becoming a child-friendly place in every local
community and in every postcode.
Doing this well requires outstanding partnership working. We will be role models
for a new charter defining what this means and what it looks like. Examples we will
include are sharing the risks around commissioning and decision making between
children’s social care, health and education, in particular on behalf of children and
young people with the most complex needs.
All rigid boundaries between services must
be dismantled. The same applies to school
exclusions. The children, young people and
schools involved need the active support of
partner agencies if they are going to be able
to stay with each child throughout periods of
difficulty.

We will place equal
“emphasis
on lifelong

”

learning, beginning at birth.

We will place equal emphasis on lifelong learning. This begins at birth. Our
learning programmes will draw from the best in the world. Board members will
champion these.

31

3

Foreword
Our plan is divided into short-term and longer-term priorities. Some things need
doing right now and do them we will. Others must be developed so that they are
in place before they become urgent, and are ready for every child’s ‘right now’
moment.
Much is made of such moments. ‘Reachable moments’ are the times when children
and young people are the most motivated, when then can be engaged and taught.
Of course, some children and young people are like this throughout their childhoods.
Facilitating teaching and learning for children and young people who feel
disconnected and who may have lost hope requires a different skillset to engaging
with those who are motivated. With the support of parents, carers and teachers, we
need to be guided by those young people who respond to those professionals who
call them ‘hard to reach’ with “I’m not hard to reach; you must try harder to hear me.”
The BCP Children and Young
People’s Partnership Board is
determined to make a difference to
all children and young people’s lives,
whatever their level of attainment,
from those who are flying through
their lives without major concerns to
those who are troubled.

We need to be guided by those
“ young
people who say to those

professionals: I’m not hard to reach,
you you must try harder
to hear me.

”

”

Such a universal approach means delivering a small number of high-impact
programmes, which create strong measurable outcomes, with strong datasets and
evidence bases to track our progress.
I will play my part and I am grateful for the whole professional community in BCP
who have made the same personal commitment. Together, we commit to coproduction with children, young people, their families, and our communities.

32

4

Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole
The people and the place

33

5

The people and the place
The Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole city region enjoys an outstanding natural
and urban environment, which makes it a desirable place to live and work at a
time when people and businesses are leaving more densely-populated cities and
choosing to live life in balance.

Christchurch
“ Bournemouth,
and Poole has been

Our area is internationally connected
by air and sea and it benefits from
our close road and rail connections to
London and the central south and from
our position as a gateway to the south
west. We have strong, internationallyrecognised economic sectors – from
finance to digital, creative to tourism
to engineering, manufacturing, health
and social care, with our universities
providing a steady supply of fresh talent.

awarded 23 blue flags and
seaside awards and 24
green flags for it’s natural
environment, beaches and
green spaces.

”

We are a wellbeing city region by the sea, where people are able to live life in
balance as they access all they expect of a modern urban area, as well as enjoy
some of Europe’s best beaches, stunning countryside and close proximity to the
New Forest.
Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole Council is a coastal authority and became a
unitary authority in April 2019. Its natural environment, beaches and green spaces
means it has been awarded 23 blue flags and seaside awards, 24 green flags with
a significant area of the authority protected by environmental designations. As well
as its natural environment the area also has a significant number of heritage assets
with nearly 750 listed buildings, 34 scheduled monuments and five listed parks and
gardens.
It has a population of more than 395,000 with an average median age of 42.7
compared with 40 nationally. Around 17% of the population are aged under 16
compared to 19% in England, with a slightly smaller proportion of working age
compared to England (61% compared to 62% in England). The area has a larger
proportion of residents aged 65 and over (22% in BCP compared to 18% in
England). 91.8% of BCP pupils attend a good or outstanding school.

34

6

The people and the place
Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) support in Bournemouth and
Poole* dropped from a peak in 2010 of 17.8% in Bournemouth and 18.6% in Poole,
to 11.5% and 13.7% in January 2019, respectively. These are similar to national
trends, although levels of SEND Support in Poole remain higher.
The authority has three universities with around 22,000 students. In 2019
Bournemouth University was ranked 15th in the country in the Global University
Employability Ranking. Destination data suggests that at least 11% of students at
the universities in the BCP area remain in the area after graduation.
In addition to the universities the area has a long-established language school
sector with around twenty British Council registered schools. Although the pandemic
has put their activities on hold normally students attend the language schools for
short and longer-term courses with some using them as a stepping-stone to attend
the local universities. Past estimates suggest that around 40,000 students attend
these schools each year.
In recent years population growth in the area has been driven by migration. Around
a quarter of net migration (both internal and international) comprises those aged
18-29 with many moves both in and out of BCP due to students moving to and from
university.
In terms of deprivation the BCP area is ranked 160th out of 317 English local
authority areas where 1 is the most deprived. However, although its overall ranking
suggests the area scores within the mid-range across all English local authorities
the more detailed data reveals that there are pockets of deprived areas with nine out
of 233 of these smaller areas being within the most deprived 10% in England.
At the time of the 2011 Census, 88% of the population
described themselves as White British. However, this
doesn’t provide the complete picture as within BCP there
are 85 different languages or dialects spoken (excluding
English but including three different forms of sign
language). In addition to those who declared a religion
in the 2011 Census, there are more than 50 different
religions listed (although some are unique to our time,
such as Heavy Metal and Jedi Knight).

*Christchurch data is limited and therefore35not included

There are 85
“
different languages
spoken across
Bournemouth,
Christchurch
and Poole.

”
7

The people and the place
The local economy generates around
£9.7 billion with around 42% generated
by real estate, financial and insurance
and the wholesale and retail sectors.
The area also has growing specialist
sectors such as the digital economy.
Around 197,500 people of working age
are employed in the BCP area. Most
economic data pre-dates the Covid-19
pandemic so the statistics do not reflect
the impact this has had on the local,
national and global economy.

The local economy
“
generates around £9.7 billion
with around 42% generated
by real estate, financial and
insurance and the wholesale
and retail sectors.

”

Current local data reveals those claiming unemployment related benefits has
increased from around 2.7% in March 2020 pre-Covid to 6.2% in December 2020.
In addition, around 14% of employments (jobs rather than people) are furloughed in
BCP according to the latest data.
We face challenges such as inequality and pockets of deprivation; housing
affordability; lower than national NVQ4 qualifications (degree and above); an ageing
population; and, lower than average national productivity. Furthermore, the full
impact of Covid-19 and BREXIT is yet unknown - although we are aware that it will
be significant and are preparing accordingly.
Key to delivering this plan is a strong economy, with high levels of employment of
local residents who are skilled and productive. The economic development strategy
will support the delivery of our vision for the conurbation, the newest emerging
coastal city region.

36

8

Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole
Children and Young People

37

9

Children and Young People
Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole
(BCP) has 395,300 residents, of which
29% – 116,300 – are aged 0-25. Over the
next decade, forecasts suggest there will
be a significant shift in the number and age
distribution of children and young people.

has 395,300 residents,
“ BCP
of which 29% – 116,300 –
are aged 0-25.
”

The overall number aged 0-25 is forecast to increase by around 1,500 by 2023.
However, this increase is not evenly distributed across age groups. The number of
children aged 12-18 will increase by around 13% by 3,700; and the number aged
19-25 will increase by around 300 (+1%) by 2023. However, children aged under
11 are likely to decrease by around 2,700 as a direct result of a fall in the number of
births since 2013.
Number of children and young people in BCP by age group – 2019, 2023 and
2028

2028

17,500
15%

2023

18,500
16%

2019

20,300
17%

27,300
23%

33,400
28%

30,700
26%

31,600
27%

31,600
27%

<5

40,600
34%

36,900
31%

27,900
24%

12-18

5-11

36,600
31%

19+

Deprivation in Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole
While the BCP area is sometimes seen as a relatively prosperous area, wealth is not
evenly spread, and significant inequalities and pockets of deprivation exist. Given
the strong association between deprivation and poorer outcomes, it is important
to understand where these neighbourhoods lie in order to target services and
resources effectively.

38

10

Children and Young People
5,350 children and young people aged 0-25 in BCP (5% of the population) live in the
10% most deprived areas in England. This increases to 15,035 (13%) when we look
at the number living in the 20% most deprived areas.
In the BCP area the greatest levels of deprivation are found in Boscombe West,
Kinson, East Cliff and Springbourne, Alderney, Bourne Valley, Muscliff, and Strouden
Park.
As a partnership we recognise that we face a number of key challenges. The
multi-agency local state is laying down the foundations to secure improvements by
working together.
Universal services
As a partnership we place specific emphasis on inclusive universal provision for
children at all ages and strive to target effective support for vulnerable families,
carers and individuals.
The first 1001 days, from pregnancy to age two, is a critically important period
of rapid development that lays the foundations for later health, wellbeing and
happiness. It is also a period of unique vulnerability, when babies are particularly
reliant on adults and susceptible to their environment.
Babies are completely dependent on their primary caregivers in a way that an
older child might not be and in their first 1001 days it is a period of rapid brain
development when babies are particularly susceptible to environmental influence.
This in turn has a long-term impact on school readiness and educational attainment.
Unlike older children, babies do not have routine regular contact with other services
like schools or childcare settings and although they may access their General
Practitioner, there is often no professional who regularly and frequently sees or gets
to know a baby, in addition when services are delivered remotely/digitally babies are
less likely to be seen and heard by professionals compared to older children.
BCP is very proud of the multi-agency working to embed a robust Early Years
structure, however, in terms of the wider plan for children and young people in BCP
the Plan will look to address the multi-faceted long-term harm to children, from
missed identification of need, reduced educational attainment and employment
opportunities to increased mental ill-health and delayed disclosure of maltreatment,
which has been exacerbated by the pandemic and which will impact on children for
the foreseeable future.
39

11

Children and Young People
Outcomes

Understand which
families require
support and what their
needs are recognising families
are dynamic

Provide good
consistent access
to support via
maintained and
responsive services

Monitor all
families with
babies

Know high
risk and
vulnerable
families

Maintain a
universal
offer

Prioritise a
targeted and
specialist
offer

Health visiting
maintain faceto-face new
birth visits to
all families.
Family support
and health
services work
together to
reach out to all
new mothers.
Midwives,
HV’s, parent
advisors,
foodbanks
and childcare
providers all
actively identify
families who
are struggling.

Systematic
sharing of
local data
and insight
to monitor all
known high
risk families.
Social workers
increase
contact with
the most
vulnerable
families.
Midwives,
health visitors,
early help,
family support
workers and
early years
practitioners
reaching
out regularly
to known
vulnerable
families below
the threshold
for social care.

Proactive
communication
to all pregnant
and 0-2s
parents on
birth, parenting
and signposting to
services.
Include
partners
in ante &
post-natal
visits, scans.
Maintain
antenatal /
birth contacts
from both
midwifery and
health visiting.
Immunisation
rates
maintained.

Early help,
FNPs,
perinatal
support,
maintain
consistent
contact. Safe
physical
spaces made
available
for crucial
appointments
and contact
visits. Digital
platforms for
outreach work
Information
sharing
between
services to
minimise
duplication
and maximise
reach.

40

Ensure local
capacity to meet
the future needs
of 0-2s

Continue to
review and
plan
Continuous
monitoring
and risk
assessment
where things
not working.
Quality
assurance in
place assure
children are
free from
harm.

Support
staff and
partners
Proactive
support/ advice
to community
partners
to ensure
sustainability.
Supportive
culture within
and across
agencies.
Support staff
wellbeing.

12

Children and Young People

We are proud of the educational achievement
of children and young people in Bournemouth,
Christchurch and Poole. In 2019 BCP schools
achieved well in all Key Stages when compared
with their national and south west peers. This
was most notably the case in the Early Years
Foundation Stage, Key Stage 4 and Key Stage
5 where the majority of performance indicators
showed the BCP area to be in the top 25%
nationally.

Key Stage 1 and Key
“
Stage 2, the BCP area was
higher in all attainment
indicators than the
national average.

”

For Phonics Decoding, Key Stage 1 and Key Stage 2, the BCP area was higher
in all attainment indicators than the national average. However, progress remains
lower than the national average between Key Stages 1 and 2.
Over recent years the arrangements for school improvement have had a positive
impact on the quality of education in our schools. Across all Key Stages the school
improvement team have worked in partnership with schools and other educational
stake holders to raise standards for all; more specifically, to address the attainment
and progress gaps between the genders, to continue to close the gaps between
BCP Council disadvantaged pupils and their non-disadvantaged peers nationally,
and to strengthen the progress of SEND pupils. Although this work has had a
positive impact on attainment and progress it has not improved fast enough and
remains inconsistent across all of our schools. In order that all children and young
people achieve their full potential with regards to educational attainment, progress
and their future destinations, there is much more work to be done.
In respect of attendance our persistently absent range of 11.6% is lower than the
national average (13.1%). However, some schools are not adapting fast enough
to meet the needs of all children. For some children that are not attending school
this can mean that there is no school bell, no timetable, no lessons and that often
means no friendships either. Children are outside of the school system for a variety
of reasons, some good and some less so. The number of children Electively Home
Educated (EHE) at the end of November 2020 was 611 which has increased from
458 as at the same time last year. The number of children in Local Authority funded
alternative provision is 324 compared to 345 at the same time last year.

41

13

Children and Young People

Targeted services

Nationally it is accepted that the benefits of ‘Early Help’ are widely recognised;
identifying need at the earliest point and then providing good interventions to
families, aimed at securing positive long term outcomes for the child or young
person, and less pressure on the public purse. Offering and delivering ‘Early Help’
services at the earliest point allows them to stay in control of resolving their own
issues and problems.
Due to the pandemic a large proportion
of children under five will have missed six
months of being in an Early Years setting
or reception class. We do not yet know
what the impact of this lost time will be on
how children play, learn and interact with
others.

A newly established
“Complex
Safeguarding

Team is working with
children identified as at risk
of criminal and/or sexual
exploitation.

”

At the other end of the age range we know that we need to improve our Offer to
Adolescents to make sure that young people get the emotional and practical help
they need to transition into adulthood and to achieve stability and permanence,
getting into and staying in education, and having access to suitable housing options.
This is particularly the case for vulnerable children – including those with Special
Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND).

the end of September
“ At2020
there were 102
children identified as
at risk.

”

A newly established Complex Safeguarding
Team is working with children identified as at risk
of criminal and/or sexual exploitation, including
through county lines. At the end of September
2020 there were 102 children identified as at risk,
including 38 at significant risk.

42

14

Children and Young People

Intervening

“

Children living in areas of greater deprivation and with multiple risk factors are likely
to achieve poorer outcomes. The inter-generational impact of this has significant
social and economic cost.
Parental disadvantages and parental conflict
often impact adversely on health, economic
In the BCP area there were
and social outcomes for children. Whilst the
489 children in care in
best option for children and young people is to
September 2020.
grow up within their family, the problems some
parents face means that this is not always
possible.

”

This can result in children becoming looked after by the local authority. In the BCP
area there were 489 children in care in September 2020, which is a little higher than
the average in statistical neighbours but in line with Good/Outstanding authorities.
However, the BCP area has a higher than average proportion of adolescents in care,
particularly those aged 16 and 17.
Safeguarding remains a continued focus for all agencies involved in supporting
children. The Children’s Commissioner has estimated that there are around 11,400
children living in households with parental substance misuse, parental mental
ill health or domestic abuse in Bournemouth and Poole alone. It has estimated
that 636 children are living in households with all three of these issues. Data for
Christchurch has not been published.
The impact of neglect and abuse on children is damaging and far reaching. The
number of children in need, children on protection plans and referrals to social care
has risen during 2020.
Ofsted reports that BCP Council must address the serious and widespread
weaknesses in the quality of Children’s Services, leaving vulnerable children at risk
of harm. Improvements are needed in assessments, responding to risk situations,
the oversight of the pre proceedings stage of family court applications to make
sure that children are not in unsafe situations for any length of time, considering
permanence for children in care in a timely manner, and a better understanding
is needed of the quality of service provided and the experience of children and
families. A wide-ranging Action Plan (AP) is in place.
43

15

Children and Young People
If the BCP area had 100 children

51 would be male
49 would be female

92 - 95 would be
attending schools
or early years
providers that are
rated as good
or outstanding

75 would go on to
higher education

51 would achieve
a strong pass in
GCSE English and
Maths (grades 5-9)
44

16

Children and Young People
24 would have experienced
some form of bullying in the
last 6 of months
15 would have a special
education need or disability,
3 of them have an Education,
Health and Care Plan
11 would live in poverty
11 would be regularly absent
from education
8 would have a mental
health problem
5 would not be in any form of employment or
training at age 16
1 would be in care or have a child
protection plan
1 would receive targeted Early Help Family
Support
1 would be a young carer
1 would be living with parents where domestic
abuse, substance misuse or mental health
concerns impact their daily lives
1 would get into trouble and need support from
the youth justice service
45

17

Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole
Views of children and young People

What makes you happy?

Artwork by Harrison, age 5, Canford Heath Infant School

46

18

Views of children and young people

The children and young people of Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole are
at the heart of our new plan, with our programmes informed by their views and
experiences. As we write this plan, we recognise that we must adapt and be flexible
and focus on the effect of Covid-19. As agencies, and as a Partnership, we will
continue to reprioritise our immediate work as we support children and young people
affected by the global pandemic.

‘Happiness is feeling good and having fun!’
We asked the children and young people of Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole
to share with us what makes for a happy life and what makes them happy. This
survey took place throughout the month of November 2020 – the month we went
into the 2nd national lockdown due to the Covid-19 pandemic. Children and young
people shared their thoughts about happiness, and we created our BCP happiness
cloud (see document cover).
Teachers shared their experiences of the conversations they had with their students
about happiness ‘A number of them started off by thinking about their experiences of
lockdown, what changed then, and what has changed since.’
Knowing what happiness
looks like for children and
young people in BCP
enables us to create
an environment where
happiness is not only
possible but can flourish.

A year ago I think I was quite confused
“about
what makes me happy, but I feel I
know more about myself now and what
is really important.
– Year 9 student

”

In talking about what makes for a happy life children and young people also touched
on what has made them sad as they reflected on the recent restrictions that have
been imposed on the country. Understanding this sadness also helps us to plan.

47

19

Views of children and young people
Children and young people talked about...
Having positive, supportive relationships – particularly
with friends and family
“More time together as a family – eating meals together and putting phones down.”
“Being able to talk and talk openly. Being able to say when you are finding things tough and
being supported by family.”
“Mum and Dad go to work early, so it was good to be able to spend more time with my
family as they were working from home.”
“I’m happiest when my mummy and daddy give me cuddles and kisses
because they love me.”

Being able to be yourself during this very challenging time
“Lockdown took away some of the social pressure, it didn’t matter if I didn’t see people or
have a busy life. Gave an excuse for some quiet time.”
“I enjoyed being able to work at home because I was able to work without any interruptions
and go at my own pace.”
“Down time and time to relax, get away from the pressure of school and GCSEs. TV,
Netflix, fresh air, alone time, sleep, pets, playing a musical instrument, being creative in
any way. Recent events have made us feel quite privileged, being able to go to school and
having the technology to talk to grandparents and people that live further away.”

Stress on the household and how it impacts
“Being at home was tough during lock down – we were too crowded and kept fighting.
Some issues with computer access. That made work slower.”
“When working from home it is harder to switch off from work. I was working at the kitchen
table a lot and then began to associate that with schoolwork more.”
“I am happiest when I watch the sunset with my mum and dad because
it makes me feel calm.”
48

20

Views of children and young people

Having a healthy lifestyle and how it brings you together with others
“Outdoors: walks and fresh air; Never come back sadder than I was before.”
“Sport – exercise with others. Brings people together. Forget about things and have a good
time. Competitive too. Makes exercise more engaging and fun.”
“My brother is autistic, and he got upset staying in so happier when we can
do stuff and go out.”
‘I am happy when I go to gymnastics with my sister because I feel fit and strong.”

School – and what an
important part it plays
in their lives

Living in a place where all people can
flourish, where diversity is celebrated, and
people are open minded about difference

“Coming back to school has
made me happy – seeing my
friends again. Seeing people
face to face is better.”

“Pride should be more often – we should celebrate
all special days.”

“Learning is better in school
too because you have
teachers and peers to
discuss with.”
“Prefer working in school
being able to ask questions.
Get more out of lessons and
can ask questions which can
change the direction
of a lesson.”
“I still miss school lunches.”
“School gives you a reason
to get out; otherwise, you feel
stuck in the house.”
“School makes me joyful
and happy.”

“I’m interested in doing things outside of school like
clubs, and having other circles of friends to rely on if
things go wrong with friends at school.”
“There should be more opportunities to do things
with people across generations – like book groups,
debating societies, litter picks.”
“It’s who you do activities with that
make it important.”
“I feel children and young people are stereotyped
and not included enough.”
“We want to help others and get involved in projects
that make you feel useful – do things you wouldn’t
get to do at school.”
“I’m happiest when I help people because I like
helping people.”

49

21

Multi-agency contributions

The saying goes: “It takes a village to raise a child.”
The Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole equivalent is to make sure each
vulnerable child or young person has a team around them. Their team is unique
to them and may include family members and professional agencies. The more
complex the need, the more the inter-agency involvement.
In the same way, most social problems need a team of politicians, policy-makers
and operational staff to deliver changes that are needed. We have been extending
this model to now include the ‘team around the school’, so that schools do not feel
isolated when dealing with complexity.
The same goes for all agencies. No agency is an island. Each needs a contribution
from partner agencies to make them successful. To be effective at supporting people
who are especially vulnerable and who are victims of crime, the police need to be
part of a multi-agency team and a multi-agency approach.
Multi-agency working was first class during the 2020 Covid-19 pandemic.
Everyone pulled together, most noticeably small and large community groups
and the voluntary sector. Community Action Network (CAN) for the Bournemouth,
Christchurch and Poole area are working in partnership with councils and the NHS
to support communities through the pandemic and beyond, stepping up quickly to
provide a coordinated response.
Local teenagers who would have been sitting exams in summer 2020 have been
encouraged to channel their energy into volunteering to help vulnerable people
during the Covid-19 pandemic. More than forty 16-18 year olds have been
volunteering at the BIC vaccination centre. Our plan aims to put in place more formal
systems to mandate multi-agency involvement, in respect of school exclusions for
example.

50

22

BCP Children and Young People’s Partnership Board
Our priorities

Listening to what children and young people told us has helped set
our priorities.

1. Fulfilled

Children and young people have the opportunities and are
supported to achieve their full potential in education, learning and
future employment.
We want to remove any obstacles that stand in the way of our children and young
people fulfilling their potential regarding health, social standing, relationships, and
education. This starts early with children getting the best start in life from good
maternity services through their first five years of life. We want all children in
BCP to start schools in a position to progress, and where any fall behind to close
development gaps especially in literacy and speaking skills. We will raise standards
in the areas that need it most and close the attainment gaps between disadvantaged
children and their more affluent peers. We want all post 16s to have good quality
choices and go on to achieve their potential in rewarding careers. We want our
BCP children to go on to be good parents and for aspirations to grow through every
generation.

2. Happy

Children and young people can enjoy healthy lifestyles and make
positive choices.
We want to ensure that our children and young people have every chance to lead
healthy lives, have a sense of wellbeing and form healthy, fulfilling relationships.
This starts from birth with parents understanding the benefits of breast feeding and
a good diet. We are not limiting our ambitions to physical health. We believe that
mental health and resilience can influence our physical health, and the capability to
lead a healthy lifestyle.
51

23

Our priorities

Healthy, strong relationships with family, friends and professionals can help our
children and young people to feel happier and more secure, as well as build a sense
of belonging and self-worth. We want children and young people to be able to spend
social time with friends and have more to their lives than studying and school. We
want our young people to be able to join clubs and take up hobbies as a way of
finding and expressing their identities. We don’t want them feeling isolated and
alone due to the lack of availability of sports and leisure activities outside of school
due to the restrictions that the pandemic brings.

3. Included

Children and young people are accepted as valued members of
society enabling them to achieve within, and contribute to, the
wider community.
We want to ensure that our children and young people are included and not
excluded, to ensure that they know that what is available is for them. Where there
are barriers to this we will work together with their families to overcome them e.g
acknowledge and address the impact of domestic abuse. We want our children and
young people to live lives free of criminal exploitation, gangs and crime and have the
resilience to make better choices with better outcomes.
We will enable them to access education and training in and out of formal education
settings and not to be excluded from settings. We want our young people to have
smooth transitions from education and training to work, and have the skills needed
to navigate the adult world. Encouraging young people to volunteer is a great way
to build their confidence, develop social skills, improve wellbeing, consider career
options and get them ready for adulthood. Our ambition is that children and young
people should all have access to decent living conditions, and have access to
cultural, sporting and creative activities.
We want young people to feel that they are part of something bigger than
themselves, for this to play a part in their social, emotional and personal
enhancement, and in giving back developing useful skills for life.
52

24

Our priorities

4. Resilient
Children and young people are supported to be resilient in the face
of the challenges presented by the Covid-19 pandemic.
Across the BCP partnership we are proud of what we have achieved during the
pandemic to help build resilience in our communities, schools and families. We will
go forward, building on this together Covid-19 recovery – we want to ensure that our
children and young people are not adversely impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.
We recognise that the pandemic has been generally harming to the health, social
and material wellbeing of children and young people, with the poorest children, hit
hardest. Not being able to go to school, social distancing and staying home increase
the risk of poor nutrition for children and increase their exposure to domestic
violence.
Widespread digitalisation has mitigated the education loss caused by not being
in school, but the poorest children are least likely to live in good home-learning
environments with internet connection. Furthermore, increased unsupervised on-line
internet use has magnified issues around sexual exploitation and cyber-bullying. The
ongoing impact on families who face unemployment and economic hardship are yet
to be fully realised. We want our children and young people to have access to good
food, receive protection against child abuse and neglect, make up for time lost in
education, have continued access to child physical and mental health services, and
be able to navigate safely on the internet. We will work with our partners and wider
organisations to support parental employment since it is key to fighting child poverty.

53

25

The plan
Working together to deliver the Children and Young People’s Plan by March
2024 which aims for the highest possible positive impact and outcomes, through
compliance at all time with the spirit and detail of the Board’s ambition.
Immediate and short-term priorities until June 2021
Fulfilled
Supporting families
from the earliest stage
to provide them with
the tools and skills
to help and support
themselves in the
future and fulfil their
ambitions.
Supporting schools,
early years and other
providers to continue
to support all aspects
of the wellbeing of
children and young
people through
Covid-19 and the
lockdowns including
staying open – so
children are able to
see their friends.

Happy
Looking after the
emotional wellbeing
and mental health
of children and
professionals.

Included
Embedding the team
around the school
model in all BCP
schools to support
them in effectively
meeting the needs of
all children.

Resilient
Working effectively
with parents to
develop co-produced
plans and strategies
to meet the needs of
children.

Improving attendance.
Reducing exclusions
by proactively
working with schools
to improve early
identification of, and
support for children at
risk of exclusion and
put in place services to
support the school and
the child. The return to
school following any
extended lockdown
periods will present
particular challenges
and so a tailored
approach will be
required.
Relaunch the
‘Mind Of My Own’
app to improve
communication with
looked after children
and young people,
allowing them to
express views and be
heard.
54

26

The plan

Longer-term priorities
Fulfilled
Developing a
broad offer of
apprenticeships that
meets the needs of
local businesses and
our young people.

Happy

Included

Building on the work to Reducing exclusions
date linking Emotional (eventually to the
irreducible minimum).
Health and Physical
Activity.
A continuous
programme to redress
Further promote the
any gender and BAME
Chief Medical Officer
guidelines for Children inequalities across the
public sector.
and Young People’s
60 minutes of daily
Taking a whole
physical activity,
council approach
including outdoor
sports and increasing to identifying
the use of local green/ opportunities to
create suitable
blue spaces.
housing options for
young people as they
transition to adulthood.

Resilient
Working effectively
with parents to
develop co-produced
plans and strategies
to meet the needs of
children.
Ensuring that schools
prioritise mental health
and wellbeing of
their pupils alongside
catching up on work
missed due to COVID.
To include promoting
social activities and
opportunities, and
where possible reopening out of school
and holiday clubs
that meet COVID
guidelines.

Note: all priorities to be taken forward simultaneously, within a managed programme, which is within
available resources and different timescales.

55

27

The plan

To achieve these ambitions the Partnership will have a number of active
programmes at any time working on both short-term priorities, and other continuous
programmes addressing the longer-term priorities. Some priorities and programmes
will be linked e.g reducing exclusions by managing positive return to settings and
looking after CYP (family) and staff wellbeing.
Our next areas of interest will include sport and physical activity, and extracurricular
and intergenerational opportunities that enable children and young people to pursue
their own interests and priorities and play a positive part in the community.
As a Partnership we will be considering
the key questions that we need to have
answered to drive our priorities now,
and in the coming years so that we put
our collective efforts into programmes
we know will make a difference. By
developing and using our understanding
to predict future needs we can
proactively target resources on those
who need and want support when they
are at their most receptive.

We will be considering the
“key
questions that we need

to have answered to drive our
priorities now.

”

We will update this plan with our accomplishments – when we have confirmed their
desired impact, and with each new set of priorities as they are identified and agreed.
Each partner agency will have its own ambitions, priorities and work programmes
that support children and young people in the BCP area. For example, BCP
Council’s Corporate Plan Brighter Futures priority is ‘Caring for our children and
young people, providing a nurturing environment, high-quality education and great
opportunities to grow and flourish.’
This plan seeks to complement, not replicate, the activity undertaken by other
Boards to improve outcomes for vulnerable children, young people and their
families.

56

28

The plan
An example of a shorter-term programme – until August 2021
Boys’ Reading and Writing
Fulfilled
Assess which
families and Children
and Young People
need support with
reading recovery and
inspiration following
return to education.
Support and invest
in Oracy for learning
to boost confidence
in speaking, pitching
and performing.
Sponsoring three
teachers to “attend”
Oracy October from
Early Years to post 16
and establish projects
to share/trial learning
in BCP settings.
Access to reading
recovery and relevant
home tuition to
address knowledge
gaps in Vulnerable
Group C&YP and
boys.

Happy
Planning summer
schools for current
years 11 and 13 for
July 2021 to prepare
them for their next
phase/stage.
Secure home tuition
base for Children in
Care and Vulnerable
Group pupils with
digital and hard copy
resources.

Included
Access/gifting books
and other tangible
resources to use at
home. These are
in short supply in
deprived postcodes
and schools are
unable to fundraise via
traditional methods.
Subscriptions to
audible and other
online tools that
support assisted
reading for families
and schools in
disadvantaged
postcodes.

System commitment
that Children and
Young People will not
be disadvantaged by
Covid-19 at crucial
transition points and
Sharing of online
to enable them to
reading and speaking
progress to their goals. resources across
schools/providers
Investing in active kit
so that Children and
for families who have Young People who are
to self-isolate and
self-isolating don’t lose
do not have outside
their entitlement to
space.
improve their reading.

Resilient
Using our collective
influence to pressure
government and
examination bodies
and agencies to
clarify parameters of
curriculum content as
soon as possible.
To encourage
government and
national bodies to
be responsive to the
situation in BCP and
the region which is
often different to that
elsewhere.
To encourage effective
and swift track and
trace for schools and
colleges so that as
much teaching as
possible continues in
schools, colleges and
related workplaces.

Supporting families
with home learning
Where Covid-19
via how to guides for
allows face to face
when they or C&YP
education is prioritised have to self-isolate
where possible and
and home educate.
assessed for fairness
of access
Asking employers
to be supportive of
parents who have
to work from home
because of child selfisolating.

57

29

The plan
An example of a three year programme
Post-16
Fulfilled

Happy

Included

Narrowing and
bridging attainment
gaps at Key Stage
4 and Key Stage 5
across all Vulnerable
Group C&YP and
disadvantaged
postcodes.

C&YP have choices of More diverse
courses that interest
collaborative blended
and excite them.
learning from 13+ to
improve outcomes and
reduce exclusions,
C&YP are asked
about the skills and
non-attendance of
subjects they would be C&YP and to address
interested in learning
learning gaps.
and that is taken
Improving progress
into consideration
Building capacity for
against the Gatsby
when curriculum is
new courses 14-25 for
benchmarks in all
developed.
pupils from Vulnerable
secondary/post-16
Groups and young
phase and in three
Families have access men.
pilot primary clusters; to high quality
so that C&YP have
independent advice
Strengthening SEND
increased engagement and guidance in and
post-16 internships
with employers and
out of school/college to and introducing Project
Higher Education,
help with next steps.
Search into BCP from
raising aspirations and
September 2021.
hopes.
All members of the
C&YP Partnership
Ensuring Gender/
Focusing on boys
Board champion/
BAME/SEND CPD and
reading recovery and
employ apprentices to recruitment practices
post 16 so that they
boost non-traditional
address inequalities
have an opportunity to educational and
across the educational
read and speak with
employment routes in system.
confidence, so they
BCP.
are more likely to be
Collaborative
happy and confident
recruitment for
members of the
shortage subjects
community.
and to commission
new teaching/training
courses to support
new courses.

58

Resilient
Broad curriculum
in Bournemouth,
Christchurch and
Poole.
Developing
collaborative value for
money delivery models
for courses with small
cohorts to promote
excellence and to
excite and interest
young people.
Innovative curriculum
and delivery models
that support C&YP into
careers and education
that interacts with the
local economy.
Working as a system
to commission new
provision/expansion
to address gaps and
build new opportunities
(e.g. new studio,
SEND/Alternative
Provision, new
courses, shared CPD
etc).
All post 16 provision
in BCP to be Good or
better and excellence
and specialisation to
be encouraged and
supported.

30

The plan
What is already underway across the BCP Partnership that will support our
ambitions.
An ambition of BCP Council is for high quality Social Work. To make this a reality
a Partnership Academy is being developed. This recognises that good outcomes
for vulnerable children can only be achieved through multi-agency working.
Services facing particular challenges have robust action plans. At present
there are two. Children’s Services and Special educational needs and disability
(SEND).
See the Children’s Services action plan:
See the SEND action plan:
How we are going to measure our achievement
We have developed a dashboard to show us how the things that we think are
important and are changing are really changing. The dashboard will change as
we achieve objectives and bring new ones into play.
Recent Achievements
BCP Council’s Youth Parliament
BCP Council’s Youth Parliament is using their energy and passion to make
Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole a better place by using their voice in
creative ways to bring about social change. Their recent campaigns have focused
on mental health – creating stress cards, the environment – contributing to the
climate emergency action plan, PHSE - Personal, Social, Health and Economic
education, and child poverty.
BCP Council’s Big Plan
One of the driving ambitions of BCP Council’s Big Plan (see page 30) is to
ensure that the BCP city region becomes one of the best places in which children
can live, learn and grow up, with opportunities to stay in the area after they leave
school, whether to go to university, to train or to work. This means supporting
the health, wellbeing and development of children from birth, though their early
years, right through their education and into adulthood.
Operation Encompass
Operation Encompass directly connects the police with schools to ensure support
for children impacted by domestic abuse in their homes.
59

31

The plan

Additional budget
Through the BCP council budget process additional capital resources have been
identified to invest in the development of local specialist provision to meet identified
need. A further £1m of revenue funding will be targeted at supporting children and
young people’s mental health needs.
Employer relationships
Many schools already have excellent relationships with employers and engage
with them in a variety of ways. BCP Council’s 11-19 Team are working strategically
to support schools and providers in engaging with local employers to ensure the
development of robust pathways into employment. The Dorset Local Enterprise
Partnership is building and facilitating a network of Enterprise Advisers. Enterprise
Advisers are key to the network’s success and business leaders are being
encouraged to volunteer.
Young volunteers
Last year the Community Action Network (CAN) celebrated more than 21,000
hours of volunteering that young people provided for hundreds of different charities,
including the YMCA and the National Citizen Service. Young volunteers have
supported beach cleans, helped protect wildlife habitats and visited care homes.
Ensuring sufficient summer programmes for children who need them
Over the summer of 2020 the ‘Summer Offer’ was developed, and access was
created through the Family Information directory. Forty families from our most
vulnerable groups benefitted from the offer and gave positive feedback. Next year
we are going to start our summer offer planning earlier to make it even better.
Winter Support Grant
In November 2020 the Government announced the COVID Winter Fund Grant
and BCP Council was awarded £1,068,000 to alleviate hardship over the winter
months. In time for Christmas BCP provided xx children with food vouchers
– these were both children who are eligible for free school meals and others
known to Children’s Services or other professionals who were living in
households experiencing hardship. In the February half term, we provided x
food vouchers.
We also provided activities for xx children over Christmas holidays and for xx
children over the February half term.
60

32

The plan

Holiday Activities and Food programme
In November 2020, the Government announced that the Holiday Activities and
Food programme, which has provided healthy food and enriching activities to
disadvantaged children since 2018, would be expanded across the whole of
England in 2021. Indications are that BCP Council will be allocated around £1m to
work with partners to make free places available to children eligible for free school
meals for the equivalent of at least four hours a day, four days a week, six weeks a
year. This will cover four weeks in the summer and a week’s worth of provision in
each of the Easter and Christmas holidays.
Children and young people are supported to be resilient in the face of the
challenges presented by the Covid-19 pandemic
Coordinated effort by all partners to support children and young people and their
families with a safe return to school. 3000+ key workers and Vulnerable Group
pupils attended school during full UK lockdown Meaning all 96 schools and our
Further Education college was well prepared for full return of all pupils.
The Big Plan
BCP Council has a strong corporate vision and strategy, which aims to deliver
vibrant communities with an excellent quality of life where everyone plays an active
role.
Find out more about BCP Council’s Big Plan and vision for the future:
bcpcouncil.gov.uk/ourvisionforthefuture

61

33

Thanks and acknowledgments

The plan has been developed through discussion with our partners and by asking children
and young people what makes them happy.
We are grateful for the strong engagement from our partners in the public sector, voluntary
sector and children and young people in developing this plan.
Thank you to all the children and young people who shared their views with us and
contributed to our happiness cloud, and all those who helped them to do so.
Thank you to all the children who sent in pictures for our ‘What makes you happy?’
competition. Congratulations to the competition winner, Harrison (aged 5) from Canford
Heath Infant School for his picture ‘My class friends make me happy’ which can be seen
on page 14.
Particular thanks go to the following schools and classes:
• St Edwards School
• Seagulls and Pluto classes at Linwood
• Stourfield Infants
• Canford Heath Infants and Juniors
The following groups:
• Chatterboxes
• SENsational
• Bourne Valley and Creekmoor Youth Centres
A big thank you to George Fanner, UAL Level 3 Extended Diploma in Art and Design,
Graphic Design student at Bournemouth and Poole College for designing our logo.
We look forward to continued partnership working to making the outcomes identified in this
plan a reality for the children and young people of BCP.

62

Forward Plan – BCP Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Updated 10 2 21
The following forward plan items are suggested as early priorities to the Children’s Services O&S Committee by the Chairman and
Vice Chairman, following consultation with officers.
Subject and background

Anticipated benefits and
value to be added by O&S
engagement

How will the scrutiny be
done?

Lead Officer

To advise about the current state
of the childcare market in BCP
and get approval of the document
and its contents/actions before
consideration at Cabinet

Information only Report
circulated outside of Committee

Information only report

Information only Report
circulated outside of Committee

Elaine Redding,
Corporate Director,
TBC

The BCP Children and Young
People’s Plan

To consider and make any
recommendations prior to
approval at Cabinet. Action - add
to Cabinet Forward Plan for
March 2021

Committee Report – draft sent
to Committee Members on 13
January 2021

Neil Goddard,
Service Director –
Community Learning
and Commissioning

Bournemouth Learning
Centre Conversion to Special
School Campus - Capital
budget

To consider and make any
recommendations prior to
approval at Cabinet.

Committee Report

Information only reports to be circulated

Childcare Sufficiency Review

2.

Update and Impact of the
Family Support Strategy

63

1.

Darren Buckley,
Senior Childcare
Sufficiency and
Funding Officer

24 February 2021

4.

Agenda Item 9

3.

5.

Subject and background

Anticipated benefits and
value to be added by O&S
engagement

How will the scrutiny be
done?

Lead Officer

Covid Response – Children’s
Services

To inform the Committee of the
up to date response

Verbal Update

Elaine Redding,
Interim Corporate
Director, Children’s
Services

Item for information to be
circulated to the Committee.

Item for information to be
circulated to the Committee.

TBC

Information only reports to be circulated

6.

Bournemouth, Christchurch
and Poole Council Children’s
Services Complaints and
Representations Annual
Report 2019 - 2020

64

23 March 2021

7.

Review from the Members of
Youth Parliament

To enable the Committee to
receive an update on the work of
the MYPs

Committee Report and
presentation?

8.

Report on Children not in
education, employment and
training

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

Committee Report

To focus on the education
arrangements for vulnerable
pupils during Covid

Committee Report

Members of Youth
Parliament
Neil Goddard,
Service Director –
Community Learning
and Commissioning

To include details on how the
Pupil Premium is being spent

9.

Ofsted Outcome – focus on
children in school update

KellyTwitchen and
Neil Goddard

10.

Subject and background

Anticipated benefits and
value to be added by O&S
engagement

How will the scrutiny be
done?

Covid Impact

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

Committee Report

Lead Officer

TBC

Information Only Reports to be circulated
BCP Schools and Providers
Preparation for Return to
Wider Opening from March
8th to include School Results

Neil Goddard,
Service Director –
Community Learning
and Commissioning

Item for information to be
circulated to the Committee. Any
issues arising from this to be
considered further

Information circulated to
Committee Members

12.

CAMHS Transformation
Update

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

Committee Report and
presentation

13.

Youth Offending Service
Youth Justice Plan for
2021/22

To enable the Committee to
consider before approval at
Cabinet

Committee Report

David Webb, YOS
Service Manager

14.

Assurance of the impact of
the Pan-Dorset Youth
Offending Services Board

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

Committee Report

TBC
David Webb and
Brian Relph

11.

8 June 2021

65
To include a snapshot updates
of entrance numbers to the
Youth Offending Services.

Elaine Hurll, Dorset
Clinical
Commissioning
Group

66

Subject and background

Anticipated benefits and
value to be added by O&S
engagement

How will the scrutiny be
done?

Lead Officer

15.

Children’s Services SelfAssessment

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

Committee Report

Neil Goddard,
Service Director –
Community Learning
and Commissioning

16.

Pupil Premium and impact
on child poverty

Committee Report

Elaine Redding,
Interim Corporate
Director, Children’s
Services

17.

Ofsted Outcome – focus on
children in school update

To focus on the education
arrangements for vulnerable
pupils during Covid

Committee Report

Covid Impact

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

Committee Report

18.

To consider the impact of child
poverty and the associated
impact of pupil premium funding,
possibly to include impact of
children’s centre funding and
youth provision funding on child
poverty.

KellyTwitchen and
Neil Goddard
TBC

DATE to be allocated

19.
20.

Harmonisation Report

Safeguarding Arrangements

To provide the Committee with an
overview
To enable the Committee to
consider prior to recommendation
to Cabinet. Awaiting date
confirmation from CCG

Committee Report

Lucy Eldred, HR

Committee Report

TBC

21.

22.

23.
67

Subject and background

Anticipated benefits and
value to be added by O&S
engagement

How will the scrutiny be
done?

Lead Officer

Partnership Academy
development – Social Work
initiative

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

Committee Report

Brian Relph,

Report on Children in Care

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

Committee Report

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

Committee Report – all
Member briefing taking place 2
March - TBC

To include details of any
protected characteristics
detailed within the Equalities
Act
Child Exploitation
To include an update on
County Lines and knife crime.

Information Briefing – date to be arranged

24.

25.

School Inclusion and
Exclusion

Post-16 Provision – to include
apprenticeship programme and
provision for those without
good GCSE

Interim Service
Director - CYPSC
Jane White
Service Director,
Children & Young
People’s Social Care
TBC

- to be parked for present review after Feb

To consider the rate of exclusions
at secondary schools within the
BCP area and the underlying
reasons for the exclusion rates.
To investigate the actions that the
Council are able to take in this
matter and the outcome that they
are delivering.

Inquiry session with
headteachers / school
representatives / alternative
provision / LA role

Neil Goddard,
Service Director –
Community Learning
and Commissioning

Committee Report

Informal Briefing – Cllr
Northover?

Neil Goddard,
Service Director –

Subject and background

Anticipated benefits and
value to be added by O&S
engagement

How will the scrutiny be
done?

Lead Officer

Community Learning
and Commissioning

Commissioned Work
Work commissioned by the Committee (for example task and finish groups and working groups) is listed below:
Note – to provide sufficient resource for effective scrutiny, one item of commissioned work will run at a time. Further
commissioned work can commence upon completion of previous work.


Visit to MASH

68

(to be arranged when
restrictions allow)


To enable Committee
Members to gain insight into
front line services

Shadowing

Jane White, Service
Director – Children
and Young People’s
Social Care

School Exclusion Rates
Committee to agree enquiry
session.

Update Items
The following items of information have been requested as updates to the Committee.
The Committee may wish to receive these in an alternative to format to Committee updates (e.g. by emailed briefing note
outside of the Committee) to reserve capacity in Committee meetings for items of value-added scrutiny.



BCP Children’s Services
Self-Assessment

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

To be received quarterly by
email and to receive a
Committee Report bi-annually.

Neil Goddard,
Service Director Community Learning
& Commissioning

Subject and background

Anticipated benefits and
value to be added by O&S
engagement

How will the scrutiny be
done?

Lead Officer

To be considered at September
Meeting
Children in Care



Child Exploitation



Assurance of the impact of
the Pan-Dorset Youth
Offending Services Board

69



To receive updated information
at regular intervals on this
matter, including how the
council has effected positive
change in relation to these
figures.

To receive updated information
at regular intervals on this
matter, including how the
council has effected positive
change in relation to these
figures.

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

To be received quarterly.

Jane White, Service
Director – Children
and Young People’s
Social Care

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

To be received quarterly.

TBC

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

Data to be received six
monthly.

David Webb, Youth
Offending Service

To enable the Committee to
maintain oversight of this issue
and target scrutiny as required.

To be received quarterly.

Neil Goddard,
Service Director Community Learning
& Commissioning

Considered in September
2020, an all Member briefing
scheduled for 2 March 2021

To include a snapshot updates
of entrance numbers to the
Youth Offending Services.



Key Performance Indicators
(KPIs)

Subject and background

To receive KPIs to include
updates on CMOEs and
NEETs

Anticipated benefits and
value to be added by O&S
engagement

How will the scrutiny be
done?

Lead Officer

70

